
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Governance Committee  
23 April 2021 

 
Time 
 

10.30 am Public Meeting? Yes Type of meeting Advisory 
group 

  

Venue 
 

Online Meeting 

 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Lab) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Ian Brookfield 
Cllr Paula Brookfield 
Cllr Craig Collingswood 
Cllr Celia Hibbert 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE 
Cllr Stephen Simkins 
 

Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett 
 

  
 

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors. 
 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Donna Cope 
Tel/Email 01902 554452 or Email: donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
  
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 550320 

 

 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 

 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Agenda 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 March 2021 as a 

correct record]. 
 

4 Matters arising  
 [To discuss any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting]. 

 

5 Changes to the Constitution  
 [To approve the amendments to the Constitution – Report to follow]. 

 

6 Update from the Monitoring Officer on Governance Matters (Pages 9 - 14) 
 [To receive an update on governance matters from the Monitoring Officer]. 

 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Governance Committee 
Minutes - 12 March 2021 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Governance Committee 
 

Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair) 
Cllr Ian Brookfield 
Cllr Craig Collingswood 
Cllr Celia Hibbert 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE 
Cllr Stephen Simkins 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett 
Cllr Paula Brookfield 
 

Employees  

Laura Gittos 
Fabrica Hastings 
Jas Kaur 
Laura Noonan 
David Pattison 
Stephanie Taylor 
Kirsty Tuffin 
 

Business Improvement Manager 
Democratic Services Assistant (Observing) 
Democratic Services Manager (Host) 
Electoral Services Manager 
Director of Governance 
National Graduate Management Trainee 
Democratic Service Officer 
 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Milkinder Jaspal. 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 February 2021 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 

4 Matters arising 
There were no matters arising. 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

5 Update from the Monitoring Officer on Governance Matters 
David Pattison, Director of Governance, presented the report on Governance Matters 
that provided an update on the work programme and other matters within the scope 
of the Governance Committee’s remit, approved by Committee in January 2021. 
 
The Committee were advised that provisions to hold remote meetings within the 
Coronavirus Act 2020, would expire on 7 May 2021. The roadmap out of lockdown to 
be used by Government would still see restrictions in place at that time which the 
Local Government Association and Government had been discussing. A declaration 
from the Courts could be sought to enable Government to change the law through 
secondary legislation. It was agreed that a further update on any changes in 
legislation and information on how meetings would be held safely if the legislation 
was not revised be considered at a future meeting.  
 
It was agreed that an additional Governance Committee meeting be arranged to 
receive the revised constitution prior to Full Council approval. 
 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the update from the Monitoring Officer on Governance Matters be noted. 
2. That it be agreed that a further update on any changes in legislation and 

information on how meetings would be held safely if the legislation was not 
revised be considered at a future meeting. 

3. That it be agreed that an additional meeting be arranged for April 2021. 
 

6 Calendar of Meetings 2021-2022 
Councillor Ian Brookfield, Leader of the Council, presented the report on the 
Calendar of Meetings for the municipal year 2021-2022 that outlined the proposed 
timetable for Council and Committee meetings for the next Council Year. 
 
Following questions on MS Forms, it was agreed that technological opportunities 
would be looked into for members to receive a notification that votes had been 
submitted.  
 
Resolved:  

1. That it be agreed that Governance Committee recommend to Council that the 
City of Wolverhampton Council Calendar of Meetings for 2021-2022 attached 
at appendix 1, be approved. 

2. That it be agreed that the consultation with the political groups on the City of 
Wolverhampton Council Calendar of Meetings for 2021-2022 be approved. 

3. That it be agreed that Delegation for any amendments to the City of 
Wolverhampton Council Calendar of Meetings for 2021-2022 be given to the 
Chair of Governance Committee in consultation with the Director of 
Governance following consultation with political groups. 

4. That it be agreed that technological opportunities would be looked into for 
members to receive a notification that votes had been submitted. 

 
7 Council Submission to Local Government Boundary Review 

David Pattison, Director of Governance, presented the report on the Council’s 
Submission to Local Government Boundary Review that provided Committee with 
three options for phase 2, as outlined within the report.  
 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

The Committee were advised that the electoral review of Wolverhampton by the 
Local Government Boundary Review for England (LGBCE) began in July 2019 with 
the view for all out elections to take place in May 2022. The review began because 6 
out of 20 of Wolverhampton’s wards had an elector number variance of +/- 10% 
compared to the average ward elector population. The first part of the review saw 
LGBCE accept the Council’s recommendation to maintain 60 Councillors/three 
Councillors per ward in April 2020. The second stage of the review had been public 
consultation on the ward boundaries. This was delayed from 12 May 2020, due to the 
covid-19 pandemic, and started on 19 January 2021. The consultation organised by 
LGBCE, would end on 29 March 2021 and the Council’s deadline for submission of 
recommendation would be 2 April 2021. The three statutory criteria that the LGBCE 
require for submissions outlined were: 
 

1. Electoral equality  
2. Community interest  
3. Effective electoral governance.  

 
The Committee were advised that as agreed by Governance Committee, Labour 
Group and the Conservative Group had created independent proposals to submit to 
LGBCE, with the support from Officers who had worked with the groups to prepare 
proposals, as per appendix 1 and 2 to this report. The three options for how to 
progress with the response to the consultation outlined were as follows:  
 

1. Option 1 - Wolverhampton does not submit a Local Authority submission. The 
Labour Group and Conservative Group submit their submissions 
independently. 

2. Option 2 - The Committee votes for which proposal is put forward as the 
council’s submission. 

3. Option 3 - The two working groups’ work together to prepare a joint Local 
Authority submission.  

 
Councillor Ian Brookfield proposed that the Labour Groups proposal as detailed in 
Appendix 1 to this report, be recommended to Council for submission. Councillor 
Stephen Simkins seconded the recommendation.  
 
Councillor Wendy Thompson, Leader of the opposition, advised that the 
Conservative Group would be submitting their own proposal in response to the 
LGBCE consultation.   
 
Resolved:  

1. That it be agreed that Appendix 1 A, Labour Groups Proposal be 
recommended to Council for submission. 

 
8 Update on the 2021 Elections - Preparations for Covid Secure Elections 

David Pattison, Director of Governance, presented the report on the 2021 Elections 
that outlined the preparations being undertaken to ensure Covid Secure Elections 
can take place in May 2021.  
 
The Committee were advised that the elections would take place on Thursday 6 May 
2021, would be Local elections, Police and Crime Commissioner and West Midlands 
Combined Authority Mayoral elections and by-elections (Heath Town and Tettenhall 
Wightwick). The Government had launched a delivery plan, followed by 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

supplementary guidance from the Electoral Commission to support electoral Officers 
to conduct safe and secure elections. Members were reassured that all the steps 
within Government guidance had been incorporated and included the following:  
 

 Social distancing (inside and outside venues) 

 Limited number of people inside polling stations 

 Masks worn by staff and voters 

 Voters bring their own pen or pencil 

 Maximum ventilation 

 Plastic screens (where appropriate) 

 Hand sanitiser 

 Regular cleaning 
 
Another step to be incorporated into the elections would be the appointment of a 
covid marshal for each polling station to ensure all measures in place be adhered to. 
The Government would be changing the rules on proxy voting for those self-isolating 
to allow a proxy vote up to 5pm on polling day and increased capacity for postal 
voting would be added. Letters had been circulated to all households within 
Wolverhampton advising them of the voting options and the health and safety 
measures to be in place at polling stations. Every elector without a postal vote had 
also been sent a postal vote application form to widen their choice so that they feel 
comfortable with making their democratic choice. It was agreed that information on 
the number of people allowed in each polling station be brought to the next meeting.  
 
The committee commended the electoral team for the work they had conducted to 
organise the elections to take place in May 2021.  
  
Resolved:  

1. That the update on the 2021 Elections - Preparations for Covid Secure 
Elections be noted.  

2. That it be agreed that information on the number of people allowed in each 
polling station be considered at the next meeting. 

 
9 Governance Business Improvement 

Laura Gittos, Business Improvement Manager, provided a presentation on the 
Governance improvement programme that outlined the key changes made to 
governance within the Council.  
 
The Committee were advised that the main areas for improvements had been 
focused on the following main areas:  

 

 Forward planning and Modern.Gov  

 The Constitution and decision making  

 Civic support development  

 Councillor enquiries  

 Adobe e-sign.  
 
Modern.Gov had launched a new app to improve functionality for users and this 
would be rolled out to all councillors by May 2021. A PowerBI dashboard would be 
rolled out for Directors, Services and Councillors to improve the councillor enquiries 
process and allow for easier follow up of enquiries received. A test pilot of the new 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

process would be conducted with a number of Councillors in April 2021 with a 
phased incorporation of the change to begin for all Councillors in May 2021. It was 
recommended that a section be added to the Councillor enquiries dashboard for 
Councillors to input ideas for development and improvement.  
 
David Pattison, Director of Governance, advised the Committee that the constitution 
had been reviewed and remodelled to make it more user friendly, which included the 
use of illustrations.  
 
Resolved:  

1. That the update on Governance Business Improvement be noted.  
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 
  

 

Governance Committee 
23 April 2021 

  
Report title Update from the Monitoring Officer on 

Governance Matters 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paula Brookfield 
Cabinet Member for Governance 

Accountable director David Pattison: Director of Governance   

Originating service Governance 

Accountable employee David Pattison 

Tel 

Email 

Director of Governance 

01902 553840 

David.Pattison@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report has been 

considered by 

 

 

Not applicable.   

 

 

Recommendation for action: 

 

The Governance Committee is recommended to: 

 

1. Note the report and provide any feedback on the report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item No: 6



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To provide an update on the work programme and other matters within the scope of the 

Governance Committee’s remit. The work programme was approved by the Committee 

at its meeting in January 2021.  

 

2.0 Background 

 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution sets out the remit of the Committee below:  
 

1.0 Terms of Reference – Governance Committee 
 

1.1 The Governance Committee shall be an advisory body, comprising Councillors, 
dealing with governance and constitutional arrangements. 

 
1.2 The Governance Committee shall, where appropriate, consider and advise the 

Council on matters relating to the Council’s governance and Constitution, including 
standards of conduct, the timetable of meetings, the administrative and procedural 
arrangements for implementing new legislation and the terms of reference of or 
scheme of delegation to Council bodies. 

 
1.3 The Governance Committee shall consider and advise the Council on elections and 

electoral arrangements, including boundary reviews, and polling districts, places and 
stations, where these are not the sole responsibility of the Returning Officer. 

 
1.4 The Governance Committee will be consulted, and may offer feedback for 

consideration, on elections and electoral arrangements that are the sole 
responsibility of the Returning Office. 

 
1.5 The Governance Committee shall advise Full Council on the adoption or revision of 

the Councillors’ Code of Conduct and Councillors’ Allowances Scheme. 
 

2.0 Additional Role and Functions 
 
2.1 The Governance Committee will have the following additional terms of reference:- 

 
a. to liaise between the Council and the Ombudsman; 
b. to advise the Council on the conferment of the title of Honorary Alderman or 

Freedom of the City; 
c. to advise the Council on the making, amendment, revocation or re-enactment of 

bylaws and the promotion of or opposition to local or personal Bills in Parliament. 
 

 
2.2 The Committee agreed the following work programme for the remainder of the Municipal 

Year: 
 
 

Page 10



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 
  

Governance Committee Forward Plan for the 2020-2021 Municipal Year 

Date of Meeting  Title of Report  Lead Officer  Publication Deadline  

22 January 2021 Local Election Fees 
and Charges 
2021/2022 

Laura Noonan/David 
Pattison 

14 January 2021 

12 February 2021  Report on 2020 
Annual Canvass 

Laura Noonan/David 
Pattison 

4 February 2021 Update from the 
Monitoring Officer on 
Governance Matters 

David Pattison  

12 March 2021  

Update on 2021 
Elections 

Laura Noonan/David 
Pattison 

4 March 2021 

Council Submission to 
Local Government 
Boundary Review 

Stephanie 
Taylor/Laura 
Noonan/David 
Pattison 

Calendar of Meetings  Jaswinder Kaur  

Update from the 
Monitoring Officer on 
Governance Matters 

David Pattison  

23 April 2021 Constitution review 
 

Jaswinder Kaur/David 
Pattison  

15 April 2021 

 Update from the 
Monitoring Officer on 
Governance Matters 

David Pattison  

 
 
2.3 This report provides an update on issues coming to the Committee and any developing 

issues within the scope of the Committee and if they take place after the publication of 
the report a verbal update will be given. As always if members of the Committee wish for 
other items to be added they should speak to the Chair of the Committee.  

 

3.0 Update on position 

 

3.1 Work Programme – an update on the work programme is below: 

 

 22 January 2021 – the Local Election Fees report was supported. 

 12 February 2021 - the annual canvass report was supported. 

 12 March 2021 – the election report, boundary commission report and calendar of 

meetings reports were supported.  

 23 April 2021 – this is an additional meeting and the details of the business is 

below. 

 

3.2 Elections update - a detailed report was taken to the last meeting. The work on the 

election continues to take place and preparations are at an advanced stage. The focus is 

to ensure that that the elections taking place on 6 May 2021 will take place safely and 

efficiently.  

Page 11



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 

 

As the Committee is aware the election is a triple election consisting of City Council 

elections (for 1/3 of the seats and by-elections), election of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner and the West Midlands Combined Authority Mayoral election. 

 

The nomination process which ended on 8 April 2021 went smoothly and the statement 

of persons nominated was published on 8 April 2021.   

 

We are seeking to ensure that electors, candidates and agents are kept informed of the 

changed processes that will be taking place to ensure that we both meet the 

requirements of electoral law and Health and Safety legislation. The second of the 

Council’s candidates and agents briefings took place on 15 April 2021.   

 

A verbal update will be provided to the meeting.    

 

3.3 Local Government Boundary Commission for England Review – as the Committee is 

aware the Commission is currently undertaking a review of the electoral arrangements 

for the Council. This has been the subject of a number of reports to the Committee, the 

most recent being the report dated to the 20 November 2020 Committee. The Council’s 

submission has been made to and received by the Commission. 

 

 The Commission’s website for our review can be seen here – and confirms that the 

Commission intends to publish its proposed warding patterns for a further consultation in 

June 2021 (the consultation is stated as being started on 29 June 2021). We will bring a 

report back to the Committee at that time.   

 

3.4 Constitution revisions – as the Committee is aware a review of the Constitution is 

underway. A detailed report on this is on the agenda for this Committee. It is important to 

note that the key drivers of the changes -   

 

 seeking make it easier to follow and understand 

 tackle some changes that have been asked for by Councillors/required by 

legislation/suggested by other bodies or shown as necessary during recent 

months  

 to make governance more efficient   

 

We are keen to ensure that the review of the constitution takes place on a regular basis 

so that it can be kept up-to-date.  

 

3.5 Remote meetings – as things stand at the time of writing this report the provisions that 

allow remote meetings to take place for local authorities will come to an end on 7 May 

2021 as a result of a sunset clause in the legislation in the Coronavirus Act 2020. 

Government has explained that there is insufficient Parliamentary time to allow for an 

extension to be considered by Parliament.  

 

Page 12

https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/west-midlands/west-midlands/wolverhampton


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

There is currently a case before the Courts seeking a declaration from the Courts as to 

whether the existing law, primarily set out in the Local Government Act 1972, allows for 

remote meetings to take place without the need for a substantive change to the primary  

 

legislation. Government has indicated that it is supportive of the approach. The case is 

due to be heard on 21 April 2021 so an update will be given verbally to the meeting.  

 

As things currently stand we are preparing for both situations namely for remote 

meetings to continue and for a full return to physical meetings post 6 May 2021.  

 

The Council’s facilities allow for all meetings, other than full Council, to take place in the 

Civic Centre on a socially distanced basis. We are able therefore to have all 

Committee/Panel meetings taking place (using the Council Chamber) and meeting the 

duties both in local government legislation and Health and Safety legislation.  

 

In terms of full Council (whilst Covid social distancing restrictions are in place) the 

proposed approach would be to have a hybrid approach (as happened for Council in 

September 2020).  

 

The maximum number of Councillors permitted within the chamber according to Health 

and Safety risk assessments is currently 25 (24 in the Councillors area and the person 

presiding at the top table). It is proposed that all 25 would attend with all other 

Councillors attending remotely, those attending in person would be selected by the 

relevant group leaders with numbers of attendees from each group determined on a 

political balance calculation. All other Councillors would attend remotely  – if the law 

changes then those attending remotely would formally be entitled to vote – if the law 

does not change then they would be able to speak at the meeting and take part in the 

debate but not formally vote.     

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendation in this report as 

Governance Committee is simply asked to note the update and provide any feedback. 

[GE/15042021/B]  

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 This is simply an update report and no substantive decisions are made through it so 

there are no legal implications as such. [DP/15042021/A].  

 

6.0 All Other Implications  

 

6.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendation in this report.   

 

7.0      Schedule of background papers 

 

7.1 Forward Plan for the 2020-2021 Municipal Year - 22 January 2021 - Governance 

Committee.  

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 

7.2      Local Election Fees and Charges 2021-2022 - 22 January 2021 - Governance 

Committee.  

 

7.3      Electoral Review: Update on Phase Two - 20 November 2020 - Governance Committee. 

 

7.4      Changes to the Constitution as a result of Covid-19 and other urgent changes - 11 

September 2020 - Governance Committee.  

 

7.5      Modernising the Political Structure - 19 March 2020 - Governance Committee.  

 

7.6      Modernising the Political Structure - 28 February 2020 - Governance Committee.  

 

7.7      Electoral Review: Council Size Submission and Electoral Projections - 19 February 2020 

- Governance Committee.   

 

7.8      Evaluation of 2020 Annual Canvass - 12 February 2021 – Governance Committee.  

 

7.9  Calendar of Meetings 2021-2022 – 12 March 2021 – Governance Committee. 

 

7.10  Council Submission to Local Government Boundary Review - 12 March 2021 – 

Governance Committee. 

 

7.11 Update on the 2021 Elections - Preparations for Covid Secure Elections - 12 March 2021 

– Governance Committee. 

 

7.12 Governance Business Improvement - 12 March 2021 – Governance Committee. 

 

8.0 Appendices  

 

8.1      None.  

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Update from the Monitoring Officer on Governance Matters

